
Public participation is invited on each agenda item prior to the Board's deliberation. When called upon, please 
approach the microphone and state your name. Kindly limit your remarks to three (3) minutes. 

 
 

VILLAGE OF VILLA PARK 
Village Hall, Board Room Chambers 

20 S. Ardmore Avenue 
Villa Park, IL 60181 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission 

December 12, 2024 7:30 PM 
 

Chairman Jason Jarrett 
Commissioners: Larry Calvert, Edward Hofstra, Kenneth Jackson, Louis LeMieux, Eric Luedtke, 

Michael Orlowski, Dominick Romano, Justin Shlensky 
  

   
1. Call to Order - Roll Call 
   
2. Approval of Minutes 
   
  a. Draft September 12, 2024 Minutes 
   
  b. Draft November 14, 2024 Minutes 
   
3. Public Hearing - New Business 
   
4. Discussion Items 
   
  a. PZ-24-22 / 340 S. Wisconsin Avenue / Variation / Petitioner: Anne Pettinger 

   
   
5. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items 
   
6. Adjournment 
 
 
The Villa Park Village Hall is subject to the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. An elevator 
is operational at the north side entrance to the Village Hall during normal work hours and also during evenings. 
lndividuals with special needs are requested to contact the Village's Compliance Officer at (630) 834-8500 so that 
reasonable accommodations can be made for those persons. 

Page 1 of 35



Village of Villa Park 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

September 12, 2024 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER BY THE CHAIRMAN 

Chairman Jarrett called the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
order at 7:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 

Commissioners Present: LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Chairman 
Jarrett 

 Commissioners Absent: Jackson, Orlowski, Romano 

Staff/Liaison Present: Community & Economic Development Director Marc 
McLaughlin, Community & Economic Development Deputy Director Michelle 
House, Village President Nick Cuzzone. 

 A Quorum was present. 

III. MINUTES  

a. Planning & Zoning Commission - August 8, 2024 

Commissioner Hofstra moved to approve the minutes from August 8, 2024, as 
presented.  

The Motion was seconded by Commissioner Shlensky. 

On voice vote the ayes have it. 

The motion carried. 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

a. PZ-24-13 - 1110 S Villa Ave - Special Use - Petitioner: Matthew Toepper FGM 
Architects. 

Michelle House summarized the plan to build additions on the east and west side of 
the building on the Albright Middle School located at 1110 S. Villa Avenue. The east  
addition would include a new public entry with secure check in. The western 
addition would remove and replace the gym. There will be 3 additional accessible 

Page 2 of 35



parking spaces installed on the east side of the building and new landscaping. A 
new sign will be placed on the façade of the east addition. 

Amy Zaher summarized that they are looking to do upgrades. They will upgrade 
bathrooms and create a secure vestibule for safety screening. The old gym was 
outdated and the locker rooms need to be redone. 

Matthew Toepper summarized that District 48 has a 3-year master plan that aligns 
with curriculum. ADA ramps will be installed, and they will bring the office to the 
front of the building. Both the gym and front addition are within the setbacks. The 
building will be fully set up with a fire sprinkler. They are in the process of getting 
approval for a sign. Construction will start in November of 2025. 

John Jasik stated he lives across the street and wanted to speak on how important a 
new entryway is for security. He is concerned about the gym going towards the 
street. He would like to see trees to shield the brick building.  

Chairman Jarrett asked if there were any questions. 

Commissioner LeMieux asked if there would be demolition.  

Matther Toepper confirmed that there would be.  

Commissioner LeMieux was concerned about the safety and security of the 
students during the demolition. Chairman Jarrett asked if the demolition would be 
going on during the school hours and if they would have an emergency egress if they 
were removing one point of exit. He would like to see an emergency plan and 
dustproof protection for the school and emergency locks with no free access during 
the school hours. 

Matthew Toepper responded that the builder was on board with Villa Park reviewing 
emergency plans. He laid out a construction timeline. Life safety items will be taken 
care of. Fire systems and dust remediation will be written into specs. 

Commissioner LeMieux asked if there will be any change for the buses or parents at 
pick up/drop off. 

Matthew Toepper stated that there will be a small shift with the buses. 

Commissioner LeMieux asked if there will be a staging area for the construction 
trucks and equipment. 

Matther Toepper stated that the equipment would be located close to the gym and 
kids will not be close to the construction. 

Page 3 of 35



Chairman Jarrett asked if there would be a reestablishment of a curb cut showing 
grass. 

Matthew Toepper stated that they will be returning the existing parallel parking 
spaces on the western side of the school to grass and landscape. 

Chairman Jarett stated that with the addition of the gym there would be opportunity 
for street trees and landscaping. 

Commissioner Hofstra asked if they would be regrading. 

Matthew Toepper stated that they will be regrading to provide less than a 2% slope 
to make it more accessible and a retaining wall will be built. 

Commissioner Hofstra asked if the parallel parking spots on Myrtle will be 
maintained. 

Matthew Toepper stated that they will probably be abandoned as they did not factor 
them into the parking calculations. They have 58 stalls and are only required to have 
41. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if this was for a special use and no variances would 
be required. 

Michelle House stated that this was correct. 

Marc McLaughlin stated that there was a 27-inch pipe under the western parkway 
and that would be the reason there are no trees planted however, they can plant 
trees on the private side of the property. 

Motion 

Commissioner Shlensky moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-13 for a Special 
Use for a School as shown in Exhibit A located at 1110 S Villa Avenue with a 
condition that landscaping be provided where appropriate within the 15-foot 
setback on the west side of the property. 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hofstra. 

On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Chairman 
Jarrett (5) 

NAYS: None (0) 

Page 4 of 35



ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

 

b. PZ-24-14/ Text Amendment for Article 6, 13 and 14/Text Amendment/Petitioner: 
Village of Villa Park 

Michelle House presented the following sections are proposed to be amended: 

Article 6 “Uses”, Section 6.10 “Accessory Uses and Structures” 

• Correction of staff titles to be consistent with prior changes made. 
• Changes to permit nonresidential accessory structures greater than 100 square 

feet. 
• Remove quantity restriction from one (1) to many. 
• Addition of requirements to clarify where nonresidential accessory structures 

can be placed onsite.  
 

Article 13 “Nonconformities” 

• Correction of staff titles to be consistent with prior changes made.  
• Nonconforming lots 

o Clarification that nonconforming lots can be used for Household Living 
uses to be consistent with other terms utilized in the Zoning Ordinance.  

o Clarification that nonconforming lots may include use(s) that are 
compliant with the subject zoning district.  

o Removal of compliance with lot requirements for nonconforming lots.  
o Conformation that nonconforming uses cannot be expanded, enlarged, or 

increased in intensity and removal of other specifications for expansion.  
• Renaming of moving to relocation for both structures and uses 
• Revision to specify that nonconforming uses cannot be relocated on any 

portion of the same lot or another other lot.  
• Loss of nonconforming status of uses 

o Reduction of time period for loss of nonconforming status 
o Elimination of period of discontinuance for acts of God or accidental fire 
o Elimination of the Planning and Zoning Commission authorization to 

approve re-establishment of nonconforming uses through the Special Use 
procedures 

• Damage and destruction of uses 
o Revised to establish replacement is permitted when the damage to the 

structure is less than 50% of the replacement value  
o Revision of the time frame for receiving a building permit 

Page 5 of 35



o Establishment of the replacement value of a legal nonconforming 
structure 

• Damage and destruction of structures 
o Established that when damage is greater than 50% of the replacement 

value that the structure may not be repaired or replaced and must then 
meet the requirements of the subject zoning district 

o Revised to establish replacement is permitted when the structure has 
been damaged or destroyed less than 50% of the replacement value 

o Establishes how replacement value is calculated 
Article 14 “Definitions” 

• Removal of “Accessory Structure or Use” 
• Addition of “Structure, accessory” and clarification to “Structure, principal” 
• Creation of “Use, accessory” 

Commissioner Luedtke asked about the side yard setback vertical wording in 
Section 13.4.3. 

Michelle House stated that it meant that permitted second story expansions would 
be able to build straight up on the foundation if it was nonconforming setback by 
less than 12 inches, they can expand straight up on the foundation within the 6-foot 
setback dimensions. 

Chairman Jarrett stated under Alterations and Expansions Section 13.4.3 he would 
like to see the wording as a positive rather than a negative. He gave the example of 
what they can do instead of what they cannot do. 

Marc McLaughlin stated that the whole section was written in the negative and if 
wording was changed in this part, it would lose the flow. 

Chairman Jarrett commented that he was happy that the 50% damage replacement 
value was added to the code and was surprised that it was not added sooner. 

Marc McLaughlin showed a slide of the clean version of 13.4.3- Alterations and 
Expansions pointing out that the Village Attorney has made changes to make it more 
positive wording. 

Chairman Jarrett commented that staff does not have an issue with the size or limits 
of accessory structures. 

Marc McLaughlin stated that was correct he said there are other factors that limit 
the structures that can be on the site. He gave an example that a pergola and patio 
would count as two accessory structures.  

Page 6 of 35



Chairman Jarrett was concerned about warehouses that wanted outside storage. 

Marc McLaughlin said that would help offices that would like a cleaner space to 
build an outside garage for storage. 

Michelle House explained the verbiage that would limit lot coverage. 

Marc McLaughlin said that there was verbiage added about outdoor dining to make 
it conform. 

Chairman Jarrett asked if accessory structures must be set back 10 feet from rear 
and side and whether that included where it is abuting residential district. 

Michelle House responded yes. 

Marc McLaughlin stated that there is a permit pending approval upon change in 
Code language to permit second story additions within a nonconforming side yard 
setback.  

Michelle House stated that the code amendment was tracking faster than the 
variation process through the Planning & Zoning Commission and Village Board. 

Commissioner Shlenski asked regarding 13.4.5 Loss of Nonconforming Status 3C 
Replacement Value. He asked what other methods of assessing value would be 
used other than homeowners’ insurance. 

Marc McLaughlin stated that appraisal market value it would be at the discretion of 
the director. 

Commissioner Shlenski stated you would want to take the liability off the Village and 
have it be at the discretion an expert of the market. 

Marc McLaughlin said we can use a CMA. It is about how we can work with the 
homeowner to help them.  

Nick Cuzzone asked where it says 50% of structural value the structure shall not be 
repaired or replaced what are you going to do. 

Chairman Jarrett said that is if it was a nonconforming structure you can replace it 
but it would just have to be built to code. Same with the use. 

Motion 

Commissioner Shlensky moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-14 for a Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment as outlined in Exhibit A with the conditions upon 
acceptance of verbiage revisions from the Village Attorney. 

Page 7 of 35



The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hofstra 

On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Chairman 
Jarrett (5) 

NAYS: None (0) 

ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS 

None. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion  

Motion to Adjourn made by Commissioner Luedtke. 

 Seconded by Commissioner Hofstra. 

Voice vote: 

AYES have it.  

 

Page 8 of 35



Village of Villa Park 

Planning and Zoning Commission 

November 14, 2024 
 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER BY THE CHAIRMAN 

Chairman Jarrett called the meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission to 
order at 7:30 p.m. 

II. ROLL CALL AND DECLARATION OF A QUORUM 

Commissioners Present: LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Orolowski, 
Chairman Jarrett 

 Commissioners Absent: Jackson, Romano 

Staff/Liaison Present: Community & Economic Development Director Marc 
McLaughlin, Community & Economic Development Deputy Director Michelle 
House, Village President Nick Cuzzone. 

 A Quorum was present. 

III. MINUTES  

a. Planning & Zoning Commission – September 12, 2024 

Commissioner Hofstra stated that we would look to approve the minutes from 
September 12, 2024, at the December 12,2024 meeting.  

Chairman Jarrett made a motion to move the comments section of the meeting to 
the beginning of the meeting. 

The Motion was seconded by Commissioner Hofstra. 

On voice vote the ayes have it. 

The motion carried. 

IV. Public Comments Non-Agenda Items 

Resident voiced concerns about a lack of senior housing in the area. He would like to 
have housing near a transit and that hopefully will be soundproof.  

Chairman Jarrett reiterates that he agrees. 

V. New Business 

Page 9 of 35



 a.  PZ-24-20 - 420 W Stone Road - Special Use - Petitioner: Jeff Peters 

Michelle House summarized that the Petitioner would like to open a building service use for 
a gutter installation contractor within the building. They do not propose any changes to the 
building. Two other businesses occupy the building. When their Certificate of Occupancy 
were approved, they were not required to go through the Special Use process. This would 
formalize their use in the building.  

Commissioner Luedtke stated that this seems like an administration clarification. 

Motion 

Commissioner Shlensky moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-20 for a Special Use for 
three Building Service uses as shown in Exhibit A located at 420 W. Stone Road, Units A-1-
B-1 for Planz HVAC, C-1 for Hoske HMI Remodeling, and D-1 KES Gutters. 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Orlowski. 

On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Orlowski, Chairman 
Jarrett (7) 

NAYS: None (0) 

ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

b. PZ-24-17-320 W. Wildwood Avenue – Variation – Petitioner: Greg Gola 

Michelle House summarized that they are trying to approve a Variation for two wall signs 
that are greater than 32.0 Square feet in area on a non-residential use in a residential 
district. There will be two illuminated wall signs with a possibility of an illuminated ground 
sign at a later date. This would have been permitted if it was not in a residential area. 

The sign does not illuminate but will have a halo illumination that can change colors. 

Commissioner LeMieux commented that parking lot lights illuminate greater than the sign 
and this should not be a problem. The Public wants parking lot lights. They will keep a safe 
environment. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if they will turn off at a certain time? 

Michelle House answered it can be programed but we anticipate them being on all the 
time. 

Page 10 of 35



Chairman Jarrett asked if there was something like that in our sign code? 

Marc McLaughlin said there is for EMC to reduce the number of hours they are on. 

Commissioner Luedtke said that it seems like the kind the library has. 

Chairman Jarrett said that with LED there is so much they can do these days big signs are 
almost always like that. 

Commissioner Hofstra said that the size helps with the distance. 

Commissioner Luedtke said the lighting around the sign can be dilled back. 

Chairman Jarrett said that he did not know about this system, but we have a lot of them. 

Greg Gola wanted to thank everyone and let the Commission know that the ribbon cutting 
ceremony would be January 3,2025 at 5:30. Everyone can come and view the new 
Community Center and thanked everyone for their support. 

Chairman Jarrett wanted to thank Greg Gola and everyone that worked on a quick timeline. 
We did a good job. 

MOTION 

Commissioner Hofstra moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-17 for a Variation from 
Section 8.5.2 Signs in R Zoning Districts to allow two illuminated signs on the north and 
south elevations greater than 32.0 square feet in area as depicted on Exhibit A for 320 E. 
Wildwood Avenue. 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Orlowski. 

On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Orlowski, Chairman 
Jarrett (7) 

NAYS: None (0) 

ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

c. PZ-24-21 - Text Amendment for Article 8 – Text Amendment – Petitioner: Village of 
Villa Park. 

Michaelle House presented the following sections are proposed to be amended: 

• Article 8 “Signs”, Section 8.5 “Signs in R Zoning Districts” 

Page 11 of 35



o Adding regulations to permit Public, Civic, or Institutional uses 
to permit one wall sign per public building entrance leading to 
a lobby or other common area compliant with the wall signage 
area permitted in nonresidential districts 

o Adding regulations to permit Public, Civic or Institutional uses 
to permit one monument sign per street frontage compliant 
with monument sign area permitted in nonresidential districts. 

• Changes proposed to permit wall and permanent signs for larger 
buildings associated with Public, Civic, or Institutional uses requiring 
larger signs for identification. 

• These changes would have permitted the Albright Middle School wall 
sign and the Villa Park Recreation Center wall signs without Variations 
or sign area reductions as were required with current regulations. 

Chairman Jarrett stated that we will combine questions and discussion. 

Commissioner Luedtke stated that he is cautious about the shift, piggy backing with the 
Recreation Center signage helps to frame it. If we allow this what will be the top end? 
happen to a frontage that is 600 liner feet can have? A 600 Square foot sign? He has issues 
with that and wants to know how did we get there? Unless we are carving out Civic, Public, 
or Institutional we are overwhelmingly talking about monument and wall signs. Most of 
these properties are corner lots, we should be very cautious about that kind of allowance if 
you have 300 liner square feet you can get two signs. 

Chairman Jarrett said that he would guess most schools would have enough for two signs. 

Marc McLaughlin said for clarification he thinks you are converting building to street facing 
frontage. It would be the building facing the street not the lot.  

Commissioner Luedtke asked if you called that out. 

Marc McLaughlin said yes, it is in 8.6.3 “Wall Signs”. 

Commissioner Luedtke said that building to street facing building frontage that changes 
things. 

Marc McLaughlin said that special use is already approved and to keep that in the back of 
your mind. The two most recent ones we just heard, and Albright cranked from 40 to 32. 40 
made sense. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if anything can stop them from doing that? 

Marc McLaughlin said that as part of the review process we can make recommendations. 

Page 12 of 35



Commissioner Luedtke asked if we don’t like the size can we cut it back? 

Marc McLaughlin responded that if they wanted to max out, they have the ability to pass. 

Chairman Jarrett asked if a sign came in for a Special Use would this trigger it? 

Marc McLaughlin responded nonconforming without the special can not max out the sign 
approval. 

Chairman Jarrett said that quite a few churches have been before us with signage. With 
falling attendance, they want to put activities on the sign. 

Marc McLaughlin said that this has nothing to do with the LED signs just the size. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if there was any consideration in increasing the area? 

Marc McLaughlin answered we already have the calculations for residential areas lets use 
the same language.  

Commissioner Luedtke stated that without knowing where those properties are we are not 
sure what we are allowing. 

Chairman Jarrett said his biggest concern is most of these areas are adjacent to single 
family homes  

Commissioner Luedtke said the first line is do they have a special use. 

Marc McLaughlin said we can approve it within two hours, but they can go for the special 
use there are many sign variations but cannot come forward until they have the special 
use. 

Chairman Jarrett said Willowbrook High School. 

Marc McLaughlin said it is completely appropriate for the size of the building. 

Commissioner Calvert states that he echoes Commissioner Luedtke that he thinks they 
need as much public input as possible. 

Commissioner Shlensky disagrees stating that the public has various opportunities to 
voice their input. 

Chairman Jarrett said the average person is not looking at the Planning and Zoning agenda 
and if they do not get a notice in the mail they would not know. 

Marc McLaughlin said 121 notices were sent out for the VPRC. In the past Kenilworth had 
only one to two calls. 

Page 13 of 35



Chairman Jarrett understands the intent but has concerns. 

Marc McLaughlin states that with the special use full notification you can do all these 
things. Signage is just one of them. Calculations would be the same calculations if they 
had a notice. If you don’t approve you have to have a hardship for every Special use Public, 
Civis or Institutional. Hardship is at the interpretation and can get hung up at the next level. 

Chairman Jarrett said signs have sightlines and other things to look into. 

Commissioner Orlowski said it is catchy either way you go. 

Commissioner Luedtke said going back to 8.5.2, in the edit, A and B gets broken out we are 
saying Public, Civil and Institutional is the exception. How much of an issue am I making? 

Commissioner Orlowski said we can table it. 

Chairman Jarrett said we need to give staff something to look at and come back with. 

Commissioner Luedtke said every park would be on it. 

Marc McLaughlin stated, if they had a special use. 

Commissioner Shlensky stated at that point they might not only want to seek a Special Use 
but a Variance. We are talking about a sliver of a sliver. 

Commissioner Luedtke would be inclined to support this. 

Commissioner Shlensky said it would be looked at closely and doesn’t think that the 
changes are beyond the realm of reason Marc did a great job of protecting the residence. 

Chairman Jarrett said that our chance to review signage is gone.  If Albright came, they 
could do what they want. 

Commissioner Shlensky said that he was taking a stance to pragmatic clean up and we 
need to allow staff to use their expertise to do what they need to do. 

MOTION 

Commissioner Shlensky moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-21 for a Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment as outlined in Exhibit B. 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hofstra. 

On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Shlensky, Orlowski, Chairman Jarrett (6) 

NAYS: Calvert (1) 

Page 14 of 35



ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

 

d. PZ-24-18 - Text Amendment for Article 6,7,14 – Text Amendment – Petitioner: 
Village of Villa Park. 

Michelle House presented the following sections are proposed to be amended: 

• Article 6 “Uses”, Section 6.10 “Accessory Uses and Structures” 
o Removal of language that would prohibit Accessory Dwelling 

Units. 
o Correction of staff titles. 
o Revision of garage requirements to eliminate number, 

maximum square footage, maximum height of garage door, 
distance to principal building. 

o Elimination of prohibition of carports. 
o Revision of duplex garage size to be based on a percentage of 

the structure area rather than a maximum square footage area. 
• Article 6 “Uses”, Section 6.13 : “Accessory Dwelling Unit”  

o Addition of Accessory Dwelling Unit requirements 
• Article 7 “Parking” 

o Section 7.2 “Minimum Parking Ratios” 
▪ Revision of Table 7-1 to eliminate the requirement of 

required parking stalls to be located within a garage. 
▪ Detached and attached dwelling units are to be 

combined into a single line within the table where 
detached, attached and duplex were previously 
separate lines. 

▪ No changes were made to the number of parking stalls 
required for dwelling units. 

• Section 7.8 “Driveway in RS and RD Districts”  
o Addition of “Parking Pads” to section title. 
o Permission for parked vehicles to be on private driveways or 

parking pads as long as they do not encroach into the right-of-
way 

o Revision that one driveway is permitted per street frontage 
rather than per lot. 

Page 15 of 35



o Distance of driveways from a signalized and non-signalized 
intersection are specified. 

o Revised requirements for properties with greater than 100 
linear feet of frontage to permit two driveway approaches on 
the same frontage. 

o Modification to permit attached dwelling units to have one 
driveway per dwelling unit. 

o Location changed to permit driveways in easement unless 
otherwise restricted. 

o Addition of driveway maximum width of 24.0 feet. 
o Addition to permit parking pads that would measure 9.0 feet by 

20.0 feet. 
o Addition of driveway apron and parking pad design 

requirements including a diagram depicting the requirements. 
o Removal of requirement for nonconforming driveways that 

when greater than 50% of the driveway is replaced it becomes 
conforming. 

• Article 14 “Measurements and Definitions” 
o Section 14.1 “Measurements” 

▪ Addition of notes for detached garages that they must 
be setback five feet from the property lines 

• Article 14.2 “Definitions” 
o Section 14.1 “Measurements” 

▪ Addition of definition for Accessory Dwelling Unit. 
▪ Renumbering the definitions. 

Marc McLaughlin stated an example of an ADU would be a Couch House or Mother-In-Laws 
house. He showed a slide of what municipalities currently allow ADU’s. 

Commissioner LeMieux has a problem 30x30 is that 900 Square feet? Does the 900 square 
feet include a basement? 

Marc McLaughlin said the idea is you can convert a basement into an ADU 

Commissioner LeMieux said I’m talking about a Granny house. 

Commissioner Shlensky said 6.13 - A would it still be the lot coverage by right? If the 
property does not have the space, you cannot put it in. 

Commissioner LeMieux says he thinks there are many that would fit this. There are deep 
lots we would have issues with. When Villa Park was set up they did not consider a 

Page 16 of 35



drainage plan so we have drainage issues. He is concerned when a property is sold, we 
could be surrounded by illegal three flats. He is worried about “servants’ quarters” and that 
a restaurant can build an accessory structure for workers. Another concern is how the units 
will be serviced with sanitary and electrical services. We have many that share the same 
sanitary lines, when this happens it becomes a problem. Can the electrical service be 
handled on the panel? Codes say that you can not have a gas stove anymore now you have 
to have an electrical stove this is why he is concerned about detached homes. 

Marc McLaughlin pointed out that that is why we want to adopt this code so everything you 
are concerned about is taken care of by having a permit. By putting this in our books we can 
be safer and have everyone standardized. 

Commissioner LeMieux is concerned about the possibilities of people constructing units 
for the purpose of renting, he is afraid that all they are concerned about is making money 
with minimal standards of construction. A standard of a rental property is not the same 
standard as a homeowner. 

Marc McLaughlin said we do not regulate rentals, but this is a potential rental with a 
principal home and the ability for rental. The owner is still there. 

Chairman Jarrett said he was generally in favor but if you have a rental house can you have 
a rental ADU? 

Commissioner LeMieux asked if they can develop the basement of an ADU. 

Marc McLaughlin said no. 

Commissioner LeMieux said that in the past that does not happen. 

Marc McLaughlin said we are correcting the errors of the past. 

Chairman Jarrett asked if an accessory dwelling unit would be subject to the same 
setbacks as any other dwelling? 

Marc McLaughlin responded yes. 

Commissioner Calvert asked what would the requirements of an egress be? 

Marc McLaughlin said that livable space requires a full egress. 

Commissioner Shlensky asked what the thought process is for parking. Will there be a 
designated number of parking stalls? Will they be designated? 

Marc McLaughlin said we do not care who parks there. The space does not have to be 
designated. 

Page 17 of 35



Commissioner Calvert asked if there was a square foot limit to the basement? 

Marc McLaughlin responded yes; it is restricted to 900 Squair feet. 

Commissioner Shlensky asked if egress requires a flight of stairs? 

Marc McLaughlin said it can access to the internal home or outside access. 

Commissioner Luedtke questioned if the building code had anything in it?  

Marc McLaughlin said, no it is following the IRC. 

Commissioner Calvert asked if there is a restriction of how many can occupy the unit? 

Marc McLaughlin said yes, that is already in the code. 420 Squair feet is the smallest you 
can have it in the Village. 

Commissioner Calvert asked if there has been any inquiry from the school districts?  

Marc McLaughlin responded no; we did not intend to ask the school districts. 

Chairman Jarrett stated that this would add to the square footage of the home so the cost 
to the schools would go up. 

Marc McLaughlin said we do not have a responsibility to the school. 

Commissioner Luedtke inquired if we have been fielding requests. 

Marc McLaughlin said yes, we do not have it so we are drafting this. We know it already 
exists in town. 

Driveway discussion 

Marc McLaughlin wanted to remove the confusing wording. He added apron depth, parking 
pads duplication and circular references. Figuring out if this is allowed or not takes time. If 
you have a teen driver, you need more room.  We drafted this based on the permits that are 
coming in. 

Commissioner Calvert said back to circular references is parking on the apron permitted? 

Marc McLaughlin said no, that is in the right-of- way. 

Commissioner LeMieux needed clarification, if 50% of the driveway is replaced would they 
need to come into conformance? If a driveway was constructed incorrectly and drains into 
somebody else’s property and now they are going to replace it is this when we stop it? 

Marc McLaughlin said if we know about it we go out now and address it with stormwater. 

Page 18 of 35



Chairman Jarrett asked if this was allowing for an unlimited number of garages? 

Michelle House said yes, but it would have to comply with the lot coverage. It is limited to 
one detached garage. 

Commissioner Calvert knows that in the not so distant past this commission was not with 
6.10.2. “Accessory Structure” it shows how many you can have. 

Commissioner Shlensky said the detached garage would have to butt up to a driveway. 

Marc McLaughlin said it can have two driveways one per street frontage for attached and 
detached garages. 

Commissioner Luedtke said is it all governed by lot coverage? 

Marc McLaughlin said it limits you to what else you want. Most are foot on grade and do not 
have footing and foundations. 

Chairman Jarrett asked does any of this change the way this works in relation to the front of 
the house or the front yard? 

Michelle House stated that the current code is specific to a driveway in a street yard. This is 
only permitted to extend by three feet. We are removing this.   

Chairman Jarrett asked if he had a bungalow what could he have? 

Marc McLaughlin said you can do one parking pad within the front yard the parking pad is 
not measured. Three feet does not allow for a car, the extra car would still be parking in the 
grass so the parking pad would remove this. 

Chairman Harrett stated that there would be two cars in front of every bungalow. 

Marc McLaughlin said we were getting a lot of requests this is what the people want. We 
have to deal with what was built and what can be done. 

Commissioner Orlowski said let’s look at the flooding issue. 

Marc McLaughlin said everything goes to a permitting process. 

Commissioner Hofstra asked what do you do when stormwater is a problem? 

Marc McLaughlin said it is a direct tie into the pipe system. Every permit has a review from 
zoning and stormwater before it goes to permitting. 

Chairman Jarrett struggles with the front yard parking pad. 

Page 19 of 35



Commissioner Calvert says it should be a hardship, if you have a two car garage it should 
be ok but if you have a one car garage with a one car driveway the car pads are ugly in front 
of the yard. He only supports with hardship. 

Marc McLaughlin said we should not use hardship or else that would be a variance request. 

Chairman Jarrett thought he would struggle with the attached and detached garage, but the 
struggle is with the front yard parking pad. 

Marc McLaughlin said the people are asking for it. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if they are one car and one car garage? 

Marc McLaughlin answered yes. 

Commissioner Orlowski said the problem is we only have one code enforcement officer. 

Chairman Jarrett asked how many people that want a front yard parking pad would have 
room in the back yard? 

Marc McLaughlin responded when people have room in the back they put it in the back. 
Only when they are in a restraint are they asking for the parking pad. 

Commissioner Luedtke asked if you are restricting what can be parked on the pad? 

Marc McLaughlin said no we are not changing that code. He said that the total width of the 
driveway cannot exceed twenty-four feet. 

Commissioner Orlowski said we are not allowing for any large curb cuts. 

Marc McLaughlin said no, it is giving more allowance for a garage that should have been 
removed already to have more options to where to put the garage. 

Chairman Jarrett said he would like to be on the record that he is on the fence with the front 
yard. 

Commissioner Calvert agrees. 

Commissioner Shlensky recognizes that there are many blended families with multiple 
vehicles. Parking on the pad would be an asset and give growing families a bit of relief. 

MOTION 

Commissioner Shlensky moved to recommend approval of PZ-24-18 for a Zoning 
Ordinance Text Amendment as outlined in Exhibit B. 

The motion was seconded by Commissioner Luedtke. 

Page 20 of 35



On Roll Call: 

AYES: Commissioners LeMieux, Luedtke, Hofstra, Calvert, Shlensky, Orlowski, Chairman 
Jarrett (7) 

NAYS: None (0) 

ABSTAIN: None (0) 

The motion carried. 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 

Motion  

Motion to Adjourn made by Commissioner Luedtke. 

 Seconded by Commissioner Hofstra. 

Voice vote: 

AYES have it.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

Page 21 of 35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22 of 35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 23 of 35



 
 

 

Page 24 of 35



 

Village of Villa Park 

Community & Economic Development 
11 W Home Avenue, Villa Park, IL 60181 

 

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission 
FROM: Community & Economic Development Department 
DATE: December 12, 2024 
RE: Petition PZ-24-22 | 340 S. Wisconsin Ave | Variation for a Deck in Front Yard Setback 

 

 
PETITIONER OWNER 

Anne Pettinger 
340 S. Wisconsin Ave 

Villa Park, IL 60181 

Anne Pettinger 
340 S. Wisconsin Ave 

Villa Park, IL 60181 
 
Request Summary 
The Petitioner is requesting a Public Hearing to consider approval of a Variation for a deck in the front yard 
setback.  
 
Background 
The Subject Property has a single-dwelling residence. The Petitioner wishes to install a deck within the front yard 
setback of the primary residence. In May of 2024, the Petitioner received a permit to replace siding on the home. 
The original deck was removed at this time to properly complete the siding work. 
 
Site Information 
Present Zoning: Residential Single-Dwelling District – RS-7.5 
Present Land Use: Residential Single-Dwelling 
Property Size: 0.23 acres 
PINs: 06-09-213-024 
 
Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North: Residential Single-Dwelling District – RS-7.5 Residential 
West: Residential Single-Dwelling District – RS-7.5 Residential 
East: Residential Single-Dwelling District – RS-7.5 Residential 
South: Residential Single-Dwelling District – RS-7.5 Residential 
 
Comprehensive Plan Designation – Single-Family Residential 
This land use category is intended for detached single-family residential dwellings of generally one to two stories in 
height. 
 
Zoning Request 
The Petitioner is requesting approval of a Variation from Table 14-1 of Article 14, Section 14.1.9. – Setbacks of 
the Zoning Ordinance to install a deck within the front yard setback of the residence. The RS-7.5 district requires 
a 30.0-foot setback. The current home is setback 32.17 feet from the property line. The proposed deck extends 
6.0 feet from the front building facade and would extend into the front yard setback by 3.83 feet, leaving an 
overall front yard setback of 26.17 feet. 
 
 
 
 

Page 25 of 35



2 
 

Internal Staff Review 
Variation 
The Zoning Ordinance specifically allows for Variation petitions in order to grant relief to a property owner from 
strict compliance with the regulations of the Zoning Ordinance. Variations are intended to help alleviate a practical 
difficulty or particular hardship that would be caused by the literal enforcement of the subject ordinance 
requirements and are site specific. 
 
Site Plan Review 

1. Building and Structure Location - The following comments relate to the issue of building and structure 
location in regard to the proposed development plans: 

a. The proposed deck is in the front yard of the lot. The RS-7.5 district requires a 30.0-foot setback. 
The current home is setback 32.17 feet from the property line. The proposed deck extends 6.0 
feet from the front building facade and would extend into the front yard setback by 3.83 feet.  

b. The proposed front stairs and walkway are permitted as proposed.  
2. Building scale - The following comments relate to the issue of building scale in regard to the proposed 

development plans: 
a. Decks do not have a maximum area permitted per Code.  
b. Code does not specify the number of decks permitted onsite. The property had a rear deck which 

was also removed during the siding project. The Petitioner is planning to replace that deck in the 
future on a separate permit. 

3. Lot Coverage - The following comments relate to the issue of lot coverage in regard to the proposed 
development plans: 

a. The Petitioner’s current proposed lot coverage complies with the RS-7.5 district requirements 
allowing up to 60% lot coverage. The current calculated lot coverage with proposed site 
modifications is 32.82%. 

b. The Petitioner would be permitted to add a maximum 2,718.25 square feet of additional lot 
coverage onsite and still comply with the 60% lot coverage requirement.  

c. The lot coverage will be recalculated through the building permit process to confirm the lot area.  
4. Completeness - If the Planning and Zoning Commission requires additional information to determine 

whether the applicant’s development requests comply with the applicable standards of the Code, they 
may direct the Petitioner to furnish additional information and evidence that may provide clarity 
regarding their concerns.  

 
Findings 
Per Sec. 11.5.6.8. The Planning and Zoning Commission's recommendation must be accompanied by specific 
findings of fact regarding whether practical difficulties or particular hardships would result if a Variation is not 
granted. The Petitioner has submitted the following justification for a Variation from Article 14, Section 14.1.9, 
Table 14-1 of the Zoning Ordinance:  
 

1. State the particular hardship and/or practical difficulty created for you in carrying out the strict 
letter of the zoning regulations to wit: 

Under current conditions, we only have two (2) feet to work with to create a landing to use the front 
door. While a roofed addition would be allowed to extend past the 30' setback, we do not have the 
financial means to build this. Earlier this year I applied for and received a permit to replace the siding on 
the home. The siding that was removed was in rough shape and it was found that it was not installed 
properly. In the removal of the siding, we chose to remove the deck and stairs that were on the front of 
the home when it was purchased (shown in the attached photo). This decision was made to 
accommodate best practices when installing the new siding. The siding project was completed last 

Page 26 of 35



3 
 

month and it is my opinion that it has increased the curb appeal of the property. 
 

2. A reasonable return or use of your property is not possible under the existing regulations because: 
There is no access to the front door without a deck. Even with just a 2.0-foot landing, access to the front 
door would be impeded.  

 
3. Your situation is unique (not applicable in other properties in the area or zoning classification) in 

the following respect: 
The most recent project to the property was replacing the siding, soffit and gutters of the entire house. 
The previous access to the house was unsafe and was removed when the new siding was installed. 
During the re-siding process, we prepared the front face of the house to receive a deck so that we can 
safely and comfortably use our front door. To the best of my knowledge, the original deck, that was 
removed, had a depth of 6'. The removed deck did not span the entire front of the house like the 
proposed deck would. 
 

4. The variation will not alter the essential character of the locality, impair an adequate supply of light 
and air to adjacent property; not increase hazard from fire; not impair property values in the 
neighborhood; not unduly increase congestion in the streets, or otherwise impair public safety; 
health and convenience because: 

We understand that this variance is two fold in its purpose, by addressing the minimum setback 
ordnance, it will give relief to the open deck setback issue. Other homes in the neighborhood have 
similar decks. It is an open air concept and will be built to code. It will increase the property values by 
increasing the curb appeal of the property. It will not impair public safety, health, or convenience, but 
increase them since it will be easier and safer to enter the house through the front door.  

 
Notification 
Legal Notice was published in the Daily Herald on November 25th, 2024, a sign placed on the subject property, 
and notifications sent to property owners within a 250.0-foot radius of the subject property in advance of the 
Public Hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation 
Village staff has reviewed the petition and is supportive of the request. 
 
Recommended Action 
To recommend approval of PZ-24-22 for a Variation for a deck within the front yard setback as shown in Exhibit A 
located at 340 S. Wisconsin Avenue.  
 
Exhibit List 

A. Plat of Survey 
B. Deck Plans 

Page 27 of 35



rJfl I 6 djs

ilHAt3tt

,0 ldac 4rPd eljrA io afiel'n

-:---:*.+ ' sPLtr narL FETTCE%.fOOFB(CE
_- . I€TA! FErcE

P.U. I O.E, . RJBLTC UlrLtTy I

--r..+F:
18,

A8C

oqIo

g{no

seas,iao

nrGllr

LCTE'X
CALq,LATEO

OF IIAY

tqE

(4,

s€)
il)

{8AD)" MDIUS

^sSTJIEO
F0ut0
foijx0

s&tr*E^gi€nL

180d

soullfffisrEnLY

lBtxr
800
?EE

0-5-1.

{-+:H-+. rla€ F6xC€

of,Ati 0f EtsfrExt. drlloti8 SEla^Cx LrE

(t(r.00
occuPtEo PER

'0o'E(A)
RE@fiOEO ^sSUSIIIVISItnl PTAT

IOMJTElllE0 AtD
ARS
Surveylng Serzice

"${"3{tr-illii.**rtat tttart tgtra?
Tl:l9IAXEVTEIY .fmffrffiffiflgRf

" " $ff{./dffd"trdh
rdffiROIIEOYtrLE, rr rrNols 601446

F&(dlo) 2169200 rate (6'0, 1169234
EIIIAIT; SURVETCAISSIIRYEY.COM

4!El OF Srnvw:
-c$rr^rr.lltG q,q67 so. n. o.Z2j AcREs roRE oR LESS.

lcwtrfic m fHE
@,lfiEtt r59ft9,

SCILE: t'-20.

ff*F*f;hifr

LOT A

lCiI-LAG 
ffi ."Tir Vl i;i-rt, ir,r, pi i,

F;;;*:;ri7 iJe.;,. 1-,., i..."3 :r :,
F.t.P ta"

.*€
OZ &n4.6 d3a

MKE
o3 qrH
togrer

Fffi€ry &n fE{cF
ltd &tF F.tF tn

o:i,tgen
xNwv
LS' 3qJn
a 1$' EA9"2OO.Oat (wn ) Elvtte wu

a o.*' u
:fz
ru

{
z
(f)zo
U
a
3

Fre
o 3 safr

a 0p s5?

LAT U

E
u
bq
(}
r0Ftk€

o*'@at
a o.p rct

i
q
&.
-.o

7tP v-2.
0 14 r<irqfH

. oE e.&7
FIX!
o(E''ffiu
a os' roT

2OO.AOt (Fyn)
45F+{ALT DRIVE

r$f,!
G I'N€

LPT 6 FvEtdm
F tP t2.

o:5'
?y
. !.!5,

FrAtE OF tlrrr0rs
oour.TY OF ttlL
l, taE 0fllB8tatto

)sE

ltl^t fltg tLAr
. lI ltLtfiots ProF€slto{ ! urno 6utyEYOi, O0 llEtttY cEirtFV ltAt 'llrrt tr'frEtr.*A! i.ivrc€ corFarrt ro rhr ariirff rllrilo* rtir.,lr !TA,,0 r03 ror A rcnn iy

,ltiR'l 0irlr I5 t cots€cT nEtfies€I? ttot oF 8at0 suivEY
0AIEO, 3TH JULY

qrrvEt, tfo
OF 4,4., 2o!7, ly iolgovtlltr tLLmoIE.

CLTEf,I BARTON
rlltlots rtoFCsrirotAt LAro 6ufiyEy0s *0. o3s". 348a .rol ro. l05g1 1 -23

6IC€
cEt 4m
. o9 ESt

LOT 5

@(re )

F*g
a.& *)w

FryToYlffi F
o

25.q|
COhKRFTE

5.5 fr

.5

26.17 ft

. DRIVE

OF

m.
ura

LI

iGqvr!!f,
I[TEA

t5-se
gfiwq

ILLt$lg ttofEistotal o[tltr Fttt to. l!.t.rgat Ftftotoit( tAlE 07-1 LfcErl. arrttE ot nloaa ro. att

Page 28 of 35



Page 29 of 35



Page 30 of 35



Page 31 of 35



Page 32 of 35



Page 33 of 35



Page 34 of 35



Page 35 of 35


	1. Call to Order - Roll Call
	2. Approval of Minutes
	a. Draft September 12, 2024 Minutes
	Draft Sept 12 min

	b. Draft November 14, 2024 Minutes
	Draft Minutes 11-14-24


	3. Public Hearing - New Business
	4. Discussion Items
	a. PZ-24-22 / 340 S. Wisconsin Avenue / Variation / P
	PZ-24-22 - Staff Report - 340 S Wisconsin Variation
	Exhibit A- Plat of Survey
	Exhibit B- Deck Plans


	5. Public Comments on Non-Agenda Items
	6. Adjournment

